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          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Good afternoon.

          3  My name is David Weprin. I chair the Council's

          4  Finance Committee. Today is the last day of this

          5  session and we have a very large agenda.

          6                 The first items will be budget

          7  modifications, MN 3 and MN 4, to implement the

          8  November Plan, issued on November 22nd, 2005, and

          9  subsequent changes to that plan.

         10                 MN 3 is a revenue modification

         11  recognizing over $2 billion in new revenue for the

         12  fiscal year, for this fiscal year.

         13                 Combined with MN 4, the Expense

         14  Budget modification, these changes provide over 661

         15  million in funding for the recently settled labor

         16  contracts for some of the uniformed forces and

         17  teachers, as well as budgeting the pattern

         18  established by these contracts for the remaining

         19  unsettled unions, and adds over $1.7 billion to the

         20  budget stabilization account to be used to reduce

         21  the Fiscal 2007 budget gap.

         22                 MN 4 also recognizes 450 million in

         23  one-time savings as a result of a New York State

         24  change in no longer requiring an accrual charge for

         25  Medicaid expenses.
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          2                 MN 4 also adds over 61 million in new

          3  needs throughout the budget, including $4 million

          4  for an enhancement of the Home Energy Assistance

          5  Program proposed by the City Council.

          6                 It also recognizes debt service

          7  savings of $33 million, projects 35 million in State

          8  education aid, and adds over 34 million in

          9  additional fuel and gasoline costs.

         10                 MN 4 also adds over 61 million to the

         11  General Reserve, bringing the reserve to over $351

         12  million.

         13                 The Administration also estimates new

         14  energy costs for heat, light and power, to reduce

         15  that reserve by 65 million before the end of the

         16  fiscal year.

         17                 We also consider Intro. No. 345, the

         18  proposed local law establishing the Madison 23rd

         19  Flat Iron Chelsea BID in Manhattan.

         20                 If you remember, after the initial

         21  public hearing on this legislation, and a first

         22  objection period, Small Business Services came

         23  before us and presented its case, that for the

         24  proposed BID we should decline to answer one of the

         25  four questions in the affirmative.
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          2                 SBS asked that we revise the

          3  boundaries of the proposed BID to exclude properties

          4  in certain areas and call a further hearing as

          5  provided by the BID law. We did that and noticed

          6  another hearing on the BID boundaries as revised to

          7  exclude those particular properties.

          8                 On November 7th of this year, we held

          9  another hearing on Intro. No. 345, to let all those

         10  be heard in the proposed district as revised, and we

         11  adjourned for another 30-day objection period. It is

         12  my understanding from Small Business Services that

         13  the City Clerk received only one objection on the

         14  establishment of the BID with the revised

         15  boundaries.

         16                 In considering the establishment of

         17  the BID as revised, if we can answer the following

         18  four questions affirmatively, we may adopt the local

         19  law.

         20                 The four questions we must be

         21  prepared to answer are:

         22                 1) Were all notices of hearing for

         23  all hearings required to be published and mailed as

         24  required by law and otherwise sufficient?

         25                 2) Does all the real property within
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          2  the boundaries of the proposed district benefit from

          3  the establishment of the district, except as

          4  otherwise provided by the law?

          5                 3) Is all real property benefitted

          6  included within the boundaries of the proposed

          7  district?

          8                 And 4) is the establishment of the

          9  district in the best interest of the public?

         10                 If the Committee finds in the

         11  affirmative on these four questions, and the number

         12  of objections required to prevent the establishment

         13  of the BID were not filed, then the legislation can

         14  be adopted.

         15                 The next three pieces of legislation

         16  to be considered are three intros that would provide

         17  increases for a total of 14 BIDs and one special

         18  assessment district.

         19                 Intro. No. 751 would provide

         20  increases for 13 BIDs, and one special assessment

         21  district.

         22                 Intro. No. 762 would provide an

         23  increase in the budget of the Times Square Business

         24  Improvement District; and Intro. No. 763, would

         25  provide an increase in the budget of the 14th Street

                                                            8

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  Union Square BID.

          3                 The State Statute authorizing the

          4  establishment of BIDs and amendments to the plans by

          5  which they operate, provide that these local laws

          6  can be adopted if the Council makes the following

          7  findings with regard to each increase.

          8                 1) that it is in the public interest

          9  to authorize the increases.

         10                 2) that the tax and debt limit set

         11  out in the BID laws will not be exceeded.

         12                 3) That the notice requirements for

         13  the proposed budget increases were complied with.

         14                 In addition, although the BID law

         15  only requires notice of this action by publication,

         16  we informed SBS on November 30th when we set today's

         17  hearing date that we would like to see notices

         18  mailed to all property owners in the BIDs of the

         19  proposed budget increases and the date for today's

         20  hearing.

         21                 So, today we will only consider

         22  granting the increases to those BIDs that have

         23  confirmed to SBS that they have mailed the

         24  agreed-upon notice to all property owners in the

         25  district.
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          2                 We're also considering proposed

          3  Intro. No. 764-A, which I am proud to be a prime

          4  sponsor of. The proposed local law would increase --

          5  along with Speaker Miller and Majority Leader Rivera

          6  -- this proposed local law would increase the

          7  dollar amounts on the assessed value of veterans'

          8  homes that could be used to calculate the

          9  alternative veteran property tax exemption.

         10                 This exemption provides for property

         11  tax exemptions for veterans that increase depending

         12  upon their sacrifice to our country, with the

         13  highest level of exemption going to those disabled

         14  as a result of combat.

         15                 This legislation would ensure that

         16  the City veteran home owners could get the maximum

         17  benefits available under the State law.

         18                 We are also considering a piece of

         19  legislation requested by the Mayor to extend days

         20  related to the Fiscal 2007 Preliminary Budget.

         21                 This preconsidered Intro would give

         22  the Mayor an additional two weeks to submit the

         23  Preliminary Budget until January 31st of 2006, and

         24  would extend the other Charter dates relating to

         25  Preliminary Budget actions taken by other officials,
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          2  such as the IBO and the Borough President.

          3                 The proposed local law also extends

          4  the deadline for the Council's Preliminary Budget

          5  hearings and budget response from March 25th to

          6  April 7th, 2006.

          7                 Finally, the proposed local law also

          8  extends the deadline to the Mayor to submit the

          9  Preliminary Management Report.

         10                 I will also be calling for a

         11  favorable vote on proposed Resolution No. 1270-A, a

         12  resolution by the Speaker, Chair Rivera, and myself,

         13  rejecting the proposals of the President's Tax

         14  Advisory Panel to eliminate the deductions for State

         15  and local taxes, and the current mortgage interest

         16  deduction, and calling upon the federal government

         17  to index the alternative minimum tax for AMT for

         18  inflation.

         19                 We had an extensive hearing on the

         20  resolution on December 12th with the Committee on

         21  State and Federal Legislation, where we heard from,

         22  among others, the Dean of our Congressional

         23  Delegation, Congressman Rengal, who supported the

         24  goals of this resolution.

         25                 Finally, we have two preconsidered --
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          2  didn't we "finally" already?

          3                 Really finally, we have two

          4  preconsidered Land Use items. One is for Section

          5  202, supportive housing for the elderly project in

          6  Council Member -- and elderly project in Council

          7  Member Reyna's district, and the other is for a

          8  transitional housing facility for homeless adults in

          9  Council Member Mike McMahon's district.

         10                 Both Council Members support the tax

         11  exemption.

         12                 We have a number of colleagues here.

         13  I'll introduce them. Council Member Mike McMahon

         14  from Staten Island, our Majority Leader Council

         15  Member Joel Rivera from the Bronx, Councilman Bill

         16  DeBlasio from Brooklyn, Council Member Lew Fidler

         17  from Brooklyn, Council Member Dennis Gallagher from

         18  Queens, and Council Member Madeline Provenzano from

         19  the Bronx.

         20                 We have an array of financial experts

         21  from the Finance Division, led by Larian Angelo, to

         22  answer questions, I assume on the budget

         23  modification before us, and I'll let them make a

         24  general statement and then we'll allow for

         25  questions.
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          2                 Larian Angelo.

          3                 MS. ANGELO: Larian Angelo, Finance

          4  Division. We don't really have a general statement.

          5  The Chairman's introduction was quite extensive. But

          6  the Finance Division would like to say that we've

          7  had a great time working with our Chairman for the

          8  last four years, and had a great time with this

          9  Committee. So, thanks a lot, especially for all the

         10  cookies.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Any questions?

         12                 Council Member McMahon.

         13                 We've been joined by Council Member

         14  Gale Brewer --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I do have a

         16  question.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:-- Of Manhattan.

         18  And Council Member Oliver Koppell of the Bronx.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I just want

         20  to say on my behalf, and also on my colleagues, as

         21  well, how fortunate we are to have such a brilliant

         22  and erudite team here from the City Council Division

         23  on Finance, and it's just wonderful knowing that the

         24  City Council, the Finance questions and issues are

         25  in such competent and capable hands, and we thank
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          2  you for your vision insight and direction on so many

          3  important issues.

          4                 With the modification, are we doing

          5  something to expand the dollars available for

          6  homeowners who are having problems paying their

          7  heating bills, is that the HEAP? That's what I

          8  couldn't find, the HEAP Program? Could you just --

          9                 MS. ANGELO: Yes, in this

         10  modification, $4 million will be added so that the

         11  City can supplement the federal HEAP program. This

         12  is a program for low-income individuals to help them

         13  with their heating bills. Because heating energy

         14  costs are expected to rise 25 to 30 percent this

         15  year, it was felt, the Council felt that it was

         16  important to try and supplement what the federal

         17  government does.

         18                 Generally this is used as a

         19  supplement for low-income seniors, and we will

         20  provide details on the eligibility guidelines to the

         21  Council members.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you

         23  very much. Is that included in the document

         24  modification MN 4? Is that an additional?

         25                 MS. ANGELO: No, it's in MN 4. It's in
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          2  DFTA.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: It's in DFTA.

          4  I can find it in here? And if you would provide us

          5  that extra information, I just want to say I commend

          6  the staff for coming forward with that proposal and

          7  the Chairman, because that is something, as we all

          8  know, that the heating costs, the number one call

          9  I'm getting in my district office right now,

         10  especially from the Clifton area of Staten Island,

         11  from a certain lovely Ms. Angelo, is the questions

         12  of heat, and that is a problem that is imminent,

         13  urgent and dramatic, and I'm glad we're dealing with

         14  that, and I just want to thank you for that, on

         15  behalf of all the seniors particularly who are

         16  having a hard time paying those bills. And that's an

         17  increase that we should all get the information out

         18  on to make sure that the people are aware of it.

         19  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         21  Council member.

         22                 If there are no further questions of

         23  the Finance staff, you're excused.

         24                 We have George Glatter from the

         25  Department of Small Business Services, Assistant
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          2  Commissioner. And if you'd like to bring up anybody

          3  from any of the proposed BIDs? No?

          4                 Mr. Glatter, if you will just state

          5  your name for the record?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Yes,

          7  good afternoon, Mr. Chairman.

          8                 I'm George Glatter, Assistant

          9  Commissioner at the Department of Small Business

         10  Services, and if it's all right with the Committee,

         11  I'd like to address both the 23rd Street Flat Iron

         12  and the BID increases at the same time, okay?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Absolutely.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Just

         15  going on to the Flat Iron.

         16                 As required by the BID law, the 23rd

         17  Street Flat Iron BID Steering Committee mailed the

         18  summary of the City Council Resolution to each owner

         19  of real property within the proposed district at the

         20  address shown on the latest City assessment roll, or

         21  that such other persons as are registered with the

         22  City to receive tax bills concerning real property

         23  within the district, and to tenants of each building

         24  within the proposed district.

         25                 In addition, SBS arranged for the
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          2  required publication of a copy of a summary of the

          3  resolutions in the City Record. We are pleased to

          4  report on the results of the rejections filed with

          5  the City Clerk against the establishment of the

          6  proposed 23rd Street Flat Iron Business Improvement

          7  District.

          8                 At the conclusion of the objection

          9  period at 5:00 p.m. on December 15th, and taking

         10  into consideration any objections postmarked by that

         11  date, one objection was filed. An owner representing

         12  0.1 percent, less than one percent of the owners

         13  have benefitted real property and 0.002 percent,

         14  again less than one percent, of the assessed

         15  valuation of all benefitted property situated within

         16  the district, filed an objection.

         17                 Our review concludes that the level

         18  of objection filed in terms of either the number of

         19  property owners, or the percentage of assessed value

         20  is within the acceptable threshold needed to advance

         21  the bill for favorable consideration by the full

         22  Council.

         23                 SBS requests that the City Council,

         24  having determined that the four questions that are

         25  required to be answered in the affirmative by
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          2  Section 25-407 of the City Administrative Code, (1)

          3  that the Notice of Hearing for all hearings required

          4  to be held was published and mailed as required by

          5  law.

          6                 2) That except as otherwise provided

          7  by law, all the real property within the proposed

          8  boundaries will be benefitted by the establishment

          9  of the district.

         10                 3) That all real property benefitted

         11  is included within the limits of the district.

         12                 And 4) that the establishment of the

         13  district is in the public interest. Approve the

         14  establishment of the 23rd Street Flat Iron BID in

         15  Manhattan.

         16                 The Department of Small Business

         17  Services supports the establishment of the 23rd

         18  Street Flat Iron BID. In our judgment the BID will

         19  improve business conditions and the quality of life

         20  in the 23rd Street area, making it a good place to

         21  live, work and visit, and laying the groundwork for

         22  further neighborhood economic development

         23  activities.

         24                 Moving on to the BID increases?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Please.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Yes.

          3  Okay.

          4                 The Department of Small Business

          5  Services supports the law providing an increase in

          6  the amount to be expended in 13 Business Improvement

          7  Districts and the Fulton Mall Special Assessment

          8  District.

          9                 As required by law, the 14, I will

         10  refer to them as BIDs now, published a notice of a

         11  public hearing at least once in a local newspaper,

         12  having general circulation in the district,

         13  specifying the time when, and the place where, the

         14  hearings will be held, and stated the proposed

         15  amount to be expended annually.

         16                 In addition, the BID certified to SBS

         17  that they mailed a letter to property owners

         18  informing them about the proposed assessment

         19  increase and the time and place of this public

         20  hearing.

         21                 The 14 BIDs requesting increases of

         22  annual expenditures desired to further expand and

         23  reinforce and strengthen existing core services

         24  currently provided by the business districts.

         25                 The BIDs wish to increase the amount
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          2  to be expended annually, beginning on July 1st,

          3  2005, as follows:

          4                 Metrotech area, $2,624,492.

          5                 34th Street, $8,657,000.

          6                 Grand Central, $11,565,504.

          7                 Fifth Avenue, $2,282,500.

          8                 The Fashion District, $4,360,000.

          9                 Grant Street, that's in Brooklyn,

         10  $135,200.

         11                 125th Street in Manhattan, $603,000.

         12                 Washington Heights, $517,422.

         13                 Kings Highway, $250,000.

         14                 Downtown Lower Manhattan, $13

         15  million.

         16                 Woodhaven, $213,000.

         17                 The Fulton Mall, again, in Brooklyn,

         18  $1,430,000.

         19                 Times Square, $9,632,000; and

         20                 14th Street, Union Square,

         21  $1,439,500.

         22                 The City's BID supplement City

         23  Sanitation and Public Safety Services, promote

         24  business through marketing initiatives and public

         25  events, enhance the City's physical environment
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          2  through Streetscape improvement projects, and engage

          3  local communities through Youth Internship Programs.

          4                 In addition, BIDs in partnership with

          5  City government help create jobs, improve the

          6  quality of life for New Yorkers and visitors,

          7  enhance the City's tax base, and strengthen the

          8  local economy.

          9                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'll be glad

         10  to answer any questions.

         11                 We also have representatives of the

         12  BIDs who are seeking increases who can answer

         13  questions, and a representative of the 23rd Street,

         14  Flat Iron Steering Committee.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         17                 Any questions for Mr. Glatter?

         18                 Seeing none, thank you.

         19                 Sometimes it pays to start late.

         20                 If you could all stay here with Mr.

         21  Oddo, we just need one more for a quorum. We've been

         22  joined by our Minority Leader, Councilman Jim Oddo.

         23                 Oh, OMB. The Office of Management and

         24  Budget for the City of New York would like to

         25  testify along with Council Member Oddo, on the
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          2  Veterans Bill.

          3                 We have our distinguished First

          4  Deputy Budget Director Stuart Klein. Mr. Klein. Mr.

          5  Klein, do you have a statement?

          6                 MR. KLEIN: Just a brief comment.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. We'll take

          8  that too.

          9                 MR. KLEIN: OMB's concern about this

         10  is more about the process than the substance of the

         11  bill. And it was our feeling that this bill would be

         12  best considered in the context of setting tax rates

         13  for next year's budget and during the process of

         14  adopting the budget next year. Since the impact of

         15  this bill will be for the Fiscal 2007 tax bills.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, it won't be

         17  the first time that OMB has objected to a City

         18  Council process, but we will certainly take that

         19  comment under advisement.

         20                 MR. KLEIN: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         22                 Any questions from Mr. Klein?

         23                 Council Member Sears has a question.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: The question,

         25  and I'm late but that should not stop the question,
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          2  at least for me, I'm seeing the budget mod very

          3  late, and I know that we have to vote on that. But I

          4  want to know, how did the transfer of $4 million get

          5  into HEAP? I'm a little confused about that and if

          6  that's going to be an equal distribution, or how is

          7  that going to work?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Ms. Angelo, you

          9  came just in time.

         10                 Council Member Sears wants to know

         11  about the $400 million --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: The 4 million,

         13  for HEAP.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Four million?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: It's 4 million,

         16  Mr. Chair.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Oh, not for the

         18  budget mod then. Oh, I'm sorry.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: It's 4 million

         20  in the budget mod.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: For HEAP.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Is my question

         23  too early or have you --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, we already

         25  did it, but we'll take it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: She wants to

          3  know about the $4 million, whether it's going to be

          4  evenly distributed throughout the City. Is that the

          5  question?

          6                 MS. ANGELO: Last time this program

          7  was funded, basically what DFTA did was do a

          8  subcontract with a not-for-profit, and, yes, it was

          9  distributed around the City.

         10                 Right now at this time there really

         11  is no particular program.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So where is the

         13  4 million going?

         14                 MS. ANGELO: It will go to the

         15  Department of Aging.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And what will

         17  they do with it?

         18                 MS. ANGELO: And the Council Members

         19  will work with the Department of Aging to generate a

         20  program.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: All 51 of us?

         22                 MS. ANGELO: Well, hopefully not.

         23                 I think the hope is that the money

         24  can get out quickly because, you know, it's already

         25  the end of December.
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          2                 Again, as I said, last time it was a

          3  very quick subcontract to a not-for-profit.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So I would take

          5  that, that if when we pass this, that the Department

          6  of the Aging can get some phone calls from us to see

          7  that where those monies are directed in the

          8  district, that they would be directed that way?

          9                 MS. ANGELO: Yes, I'm sure they'll

         10  welcome the phone calls, yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you.

         12                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         14  Council member.

         15                 We've been joined by Council Member

         16  Albert Vann from Brooklyn, and Council Member

         17  Christine Quinn from Manhattan, and Council Member

         18  Gale Brewer from Manhattan.

         19                 Proceed. I want to note for the

         20  record, we do have a quorum and the hour is late and

         21  we have to proceed to a number of activities,

         22  including the Stated Council Meeting.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I will be very

         24  quick.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member
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          2  Brewer.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you. I

          4  just wanted to ask, to understand the difference

          5  between the current veterans benefits property tax

          6  and what is in this bill. Not Council Member Oddo,

          7  the Finance Division.

          8                 MS. FELTON: Yes, this increases the

          9  ceiling of the maximum dollar that veterans can

         10  receive under the property tax exemption.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         12                 MS. FELTON: And it's a 20 percent

         13  increase over what the current ceiling is.

         14                 Basically what it is, that there are

         15  three levels of veterans exemption, depending upon

         16  what type of service you saw in a period of war, and

         17  the veterans are entitled to a certain percentage of

         18  their assessed value, but that assessed value is

         19  subject to a cap or a ceiling amount. So, this

         20  increases --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay, the

         22  reason I ask is because my husband is a disabled

         23  veteran, so I am familiar with this issue, but my

         24  question is, this came about because veterans were

         25  concerned that there was a ceiling; is that why

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  we're doing this?

          3                 MS. FELTON: I think the State

          4  actually passed a law in 2005 authorizing us to

          5  increase the ceiling. We did this earlier in '98,

          6  probably there was, I'm sure the veterans were

          7  concerned and interested in it.

          8                 Also, I think it helps keep pace in

          9  the 20 percent increase, helps keep pace with the

         10  increases in assessed value.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         12                 MS. FELTON: So more veterans should

         13  be able to get what they're entitled to.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         15                 Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         17                 All right, I'm going to couple 11

         18  separate items we have to vote on. Intro. 45, Intro.

         19  751, Intro. 762, Intro. 763, proposed Resolution

         20  1270-A, preconsidered Intro., proposed Intro. 764-A,

         21  two preconsidered Land Use items, and two

         22  preconsidered budget modifications, MN 3 and MN 4.

         23                 Call the roll on all 11 items.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Weprin.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Aye on all.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye on

          4  all.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye on all.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Aye on all.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Brewer.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Aye on all.

         11                 I just want to thank the Finance

         12  Division for coming to the Manhattan Delegation to

         13  talk about the budget mod. But I also want to say

         14  that perhaps in the future, because we didn't have

         15  the actual paper in front of us, we could perhaps,

         16  and this was perhaps Council Member McMahon's

         17  suggestion, to have the Finance Committee on a day

         18  when we could have more discussion about some of the

         19  specifics, but I vote aye on all.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: DeBlasio.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Aye on all.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Aye on all.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Aye on all.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye on all.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vann.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye on all.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gallagher.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Mr.

         10  Chairman, may I be temporary excused to explain my

         11  vote?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, you may.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: I'm going

         14  to be voting aye on all coupled general orders. I

         15  just wanted to thank the representatives from the

         16  Woodhaven Business Improvement District who are here

         17  today led by Maria Thompson, Executive Director.

         18  Thank you for your advocacy and your work in our

         19  community.

         20                 I vote aye on all coupled general

         21  orders. Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I vote aye on

         24  all. I would just like to thank Council Member

         25  Felder.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Felder.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: May I be

          4  excused to explain my vote?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, you may.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I vote aye on

          7  all.

          8                 I would like to thank the Chair,

          9  although you may be the Chair for the next four

         10  years as well, funnier things have happened, but I

         11  just wanted to mention that I think it was nice

         12  working together, and you've been certainly a

         13  gentleman and very decent human being and a

         14  favorable chair. So, I appreciate the opportunity to

         15  work together, despite the fact that there are other

         16  members who are on the Committee who have tried to

         17  do things to me in your presence, such as the member

         18  who I just don't want to talk about now. I don't

         19  want to even say anything. But I mean that in all

         20  seriousness, I want to thank you, and of course

         21  thank the Finance staff for everything. It's been an

         22  honor working together.

         23                 I may not be on the Finance Committee

         24  --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Or on the
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          2  Council.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I may not be

          4  in the Council. No problem. So, that's all. I vote

          5  yes on all. And in terms of all the rumors that you

          6  alluded to, every one of the rumors is true. Every

          7  one of them. Right, all at the same time, in fact.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, I'll just

          9  state in response to my distinguished colleague's

         10  comments, I have to sincerely say that you have

         11  certainly livened up Finance Committee meetings

         12  these past couple of years that you've been on.

         13                 So, you certainly have made a major

         14  contribution to this Committee in more ways than

         15  one.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: It's been a

         17  pleasure working with you, and I hope to continue

         18  working with you for many years to come.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gennaro.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 15 in the

         22  affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         23  abstentions, all items are adopted. Council members,

         24  please sign the Committee reports.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: All right, I'm
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          2  going to keep the roll open until the Stated Meeting

          3  starts. Other than that, we're adjourned.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 12:55 p.m.)

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

          6  Jackson.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye on all.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote now stands at

          9  16.

         10                 Council Member Comrie.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye on all.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote is now at 17.

         13                 (Subsequently, Council Members

         14  Boyland and Moskowitz voted aye. The vote is 19 in

         15  the affirmative, zero negative and no abstentions.)

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 12:55 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 21st day of December 2005.
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                                                            33

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

